
 

 

At a meeting of the ECONOMIC PROSPERITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held in 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CITY HALL on TUESDAY 9 SEPTEMBER 2025 at 4.30pm 
 
Present: - 
 
Councillor Burrell in the Chair 
 
Councillors Dixon, Donkin, Fagan, Guy, Newey, Price, Reed, G. Smith and Watson 
 
Also in attendance: - 
 
Graham Carr, Highway Design and Infrastructure Manager, Sunderland City Council 
Tim Smith, Group Engineer, Sunderland City Council 
Michael Frost, Group Engineer, Sunderland City Council 
Gillian Robinson, Scrutiny and Member Support Coordinator 
James Diamond, Scrutiny Officer, Sunderland City Council 
Paul Wood, Principal Democratic Services Officer, Sunderland City Council 
 
Members of the Press 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made. 
 
 
Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted to the meeting on behalf of Councillor Foster. 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 8 July 2025 
 
A copy of the minutes of the meeting held on 8 July 2025 were submitted. 
 
(For copy reports – see original minutes). 
 
Councillor Donkin referred to page 3 para 3 in relation to Links for Life and 
commented that he believed inaccurate information had been supplied by Officers 
and he believed this to be very worrying and could suggest a conflict of interest, 
therefore requested that Officers be invited back to the Committee for clarification.  
 
Mr Diamond advised that he would contact the Officers concerned to provide 
clarification and to come back to the appropriate forum. 
 
1. RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 8 July 2025 (copy 

circulated), be confirmed and signed as a correct record.  
 

 
Declarations of Interest (including Whipping Declarations) 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 



 

 

Highways Maintenance Update 2025/2026 
 
The Executive Director of City Development submitted a report (copy circulated) to 
outline the process and update the Committee on progress with regards to the 
planned Highway Maintenance Programme and to update the Committee on the 
Council’s submission of their ‘Local Highway Maintenance Transparency Report’ to 
the Department for Transport (DfT) in accordance with the Government’s Highway 
Maintenance Capital Funding requirements. 

 
(For copy report – see original minutes) 
 
Graham Carr, Highway Design and Infrastructure Manager, Michael Frost, Group 
Engineer and Tim Smith, Group Engineer were in attendance to present the report 
and to answer any Member queries.  
 
Councillor Guy commented that as a Washington Councillor, there had been a great 
deal of displeasure raised by residents regarding bridge maintenance and the 
disruption this had caused and enquired if there was a policy relating to 
communications with local people or how they communicated with residents when 
works were due. 
 
Mr Smith advised that they prepare the programme of works which then went to 
Cabinet for approval, in addition the Council has to approve permits and signs go up 
in advance of any works, bridge works and closure of roads. 
 
Mr Smith also advised that if they were closing a road, letter drops would be made to 
those properties directly affected and Officers tried to notify Ward Councillors of the 
programme of works with a weekly report going out to all Members with a link to the 
map based system which included dates. 
 
Mr Frost added that sometimes a press release would be made when letter drops 
were infeasible. 
 
Councillor Guy suggested that social media could be utilised more with possibly a 
dedicated Council Facebook page advertising road closures etc which local people 
would find more helpful.  Mr Smith advised that he would note the suggestion. 
 
In response to Councillor Newey’s reference to the changes made to the traffic 
systems at Harbour View, Mr Carr advised that the issues in question took place 
over bank holiday Monday, where it had been the hottest day of the year and where 
there had been  60% extra traffic trying to get to the coast.  Mr Carr commented that 
any traffic system implemented would have been unable to cope with this volume 
and all car parks in the area had been full by 10am therefore the main issues had 
resulted from the sheer volume of traffic.  The system put in place helps cyclists, 
pedestrians and those using pushchairs/wheelchairs therefore was a safer system 
than before but it was in the monitoring stage currently to see how it was performing. 
 
Mr Frost added that during the construction period temporary lights were used which 
used fixed timings whereas now it was complete, the system used detection for 



 

 

timings so we would not see the delays that were experienced over the last few 
weeks. 
 
Councillor Newey enquired as to the process when priority works timelines were 
moved and how Councillors could help in letting residents know of this.  Mr Frost 
advised that all programmes of scheduled works were circulated two weeks prior and 
advanced notification was given.  Mr Smith commented that they generally sent out 6 
week programmes as utility works could have knock on effects. 
 
In response to Councillor Donkin’s enquiry over the works either end of St Lukes 
Road, Mr Frost advised that he would look to see when these were due to be 
completed and get back to Councillor Donkin. 
 
Councillor Dixon referred to recent work done within St Michaels ward and 
commented that the team work between Council Officers and Members had been 
very good in terms of communication however enquired if there were any issues 
relating to incorrect signage being used and if there were any procedures in place for 
this. 
 
Mr Frost advised that the sub-contractors would erect the signage and in this 
particular instance it had been an operator error.  The Council relied upon reports 
being made in which they would then react straight away to rectify any issues and 
there was no need to change any procedures as this was just a human error which 
was very rare.  Councillor Dixon wished to thank the Officers and the Team for their 
work. 
 
Councillor Reed enquired if there had been any instances where the Council had to 
act upon the minimum standard of repairs required by contractors since its 
implementation in March 2024.  Mr Frost advised that all private contractors work 
was guaranteed for 12 months anyway and the Council did monitor its own work so 
was put right if needed. 
 
In response to the Chairs enquiry over the traffic signals and if these were still the 
responsibility of Newcastle Council, Mr Frost advised that this was still the case and 
recent issues had been down to a high turnover of staff within that Authority but they 
were starting to recover after a recruitment drive.  This had caused inconvenience to 
our Council and its Programme of works but no compensation was available. 
 
Councillor Reed queried how difficult it would be to bring the Traffic signals back 
under Sunderland control.  Mr Carr advised that this was something Sunderland had 
never had under their control as part of a regional group, responsibility had always 
been with Newcastle, just as Sunderland were responsible for the Fire Authority etc 
and should we start pulling out of these agreements and acting individually it would 
start costing more.  Mr Frost added that we did not have the expertise to do this 
ourselves also. 
 
The Chairman queried the figures and commented that there appeared to be more 
budget going into the programme yet there wasn’t a huge increase in activity and 
queried if this was due to increased construction costs.  Mr Frost confirmed that the 
costs of material and labour costs had increased over the last couple of years 



 

 

 
There being no further questions, the Chair thanked Mr Carr, Mr Frost and Mr Smith 
for their attendance and it was then: - 
 
2.  RESOLVED that the report be received and noted. 
 
 
Flood Alleviation and Culvert Maintenance Works 2020/2027 
 
The Executive Director of City Development submitted a report (copy circulated) to  
(For copy report – see original minutes) update the Committee on the progress of the 
2020-2027 Flood Alleviation and Capital Maintenance Programme. 
 
Graham Carr, Highway Design and Infrastructure Manager presented the report and 
was on hand to answer any queries from Members. 
 
The Committee were asked to comment on the report. 
 
Councillor Reed commented that it was fantastic to see we were being proactive 
rather than reactive but referred to the fact we only had two gully cleaning trucks and 
queried if Officers felt confident that this was enough.  Mr Carr commented that from 
an Officer point of view they did not feel two was enough and that they used to have 
three but savings had to be made and ideally they would like to visit every gully, 
which they were not achieving at the moment.  However, they did have a risk 
assessment kit that monitored the Gully’s so they could visit these when issues 
arose but a third vehicle would not go amiss. 
 
Councillor Dixon referred to the larger sized gully installed within Ashbrook and 
queried if there were any plans to install these going forward.  Mr Frost advised that 
there was no set programme but they did install these if works were planned and if 
the larger size were required. 
 
Councillor Dixon queried if any lessons had been learned from last years flooding 
issues.  Mr Carr informed the Committee that they maintain a digest of what flood 
actions have been taken but as they rely on Northumbria Water and their capacity, if 
this was overrun there was little we could do about it.  Paul Armin did have regular 
dialogue with Northumbria Water to work with them as much as possible. 
 
Councillor Dixon commented that there was a great deal of work needed after that 
particular instance with one residents garden being flooded and it took a great deal 
of time before they were seen by an Officer, and queried if that was just due to the 
events that had occurred or if the process could be sped up any. 
 
Mr Carr commented that he felt this will have been due to the events that night and 
Officers will have had to prioritise their time. 
 
Councillor Donkin wished to highlight that he had witnessed slurry being deposited 
into the river by Sheepfolds and he was still working with Paul Armin to try and find 
out what this was two months on so requested if Officers could press Northumbria 
Water on this. 



 

 

Councillor Fagan queried how we could hold Northumbria Water to account when 
there were burst pipes as a recent instance had resulted in a road having to close 
three separate times due to their poor works.  Mr Carr commented that the utilities 
work under their own legislation, but the Council did have some control over 
coordination and permitting works etc, but the quality of works was really down to 
them. 
 
Mr Smith advised that Mr Armin regularly met with the companies and held frank 
discussions where he held them to account so they did have some influence in 
issuing permits etc but if Members had any issues they wished him to raise then do 
let them know. 
 
Councillor Price commented that there were thousands of new housing and 
developments being built and queried how they managed and negotiated the gully 
cleaning for these, how were these managed and planned for.  Mr Carr advised that 
these were just added into the network as and when they came online and became 
another pressure upon the Council to maintain.  Councillor Price wished to thank the 
Team for all their work. 
 
The Chairman referred to the £80k allocated to Herrington Burn and queried if there 
were any other instances where they were protecting infrastructure rather than 
housing.  Mr Smith advised that this was to protect the access road in that area and 
he would get back to the Chairman with more detail on that. 
 
There being no further questions the Chair thanked Mr Carr, Mr Smith and Mr Frost 
for their attendance and it was: - 
 

3. RESOLVED that the report be received and noted 
 
 
Annual Work Programme 2025/2026 
 
The Scrutiny and Members’ Support Co-ordinator submitted a report (copy 
circulated), for the Committee to consider and agree the work programme for the 
municipal year 2025/26. 
 
(For copy report – see original minutes). 
 
James Diamond, Scrutiny Officer presented the report for Members’ information and 
possible suggestions/comments. 
 
Councillor Donkin commented that there had been a report on the Crown Works 
Studios due which had fallen off the programme.  Mr Diamond advised that this was 
now contained within issues raised as they did not have a date when details of an 
update would be available.  Councillor Donkin commented that it would be useful if 
we could have an update at the next meeting. 
 
Councillor Dixon commented that he would like the report on Business Centres to be 
brought forward to inform of the changes that had occurred with the DWP at the 
software centre and how much the Council were now losing on this as he felt this 



 

 

was quite an urgent issue.  Mr Diamond advised that he would investigate what date 
this could be brought to. 
 
Councillor Fagan also suggested that the occupancy of City Hall building should be 
brought to this. 
 
4. RESOLVED that the Committee received and noted the report 
 
 
Notice of Key Decisions 
 
The Scrutiny and Members’ Support Co-ordinator submitted a report providing 
Members with an opportunity to consider the items on the Executive’s Notice of Key 
Decisions for the 28-day period from 20 August 2025 (copies circulated). 
 
(For copy report and notice – see original minutes). 
 
The Scrutiny Officer reminded Members to get in touch if they required further 
information on any of the items included in the notice. 
 
5. RESOLVED that the Notice of Key Decisions be received and noted. 
 
 
The Chair thanked everyone for their attendance and closed the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) M BURRELL 
  Chair 


